[NAME OF COURT] OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF [NAME OF COUNTY]
-----------------------------------------------------------------X

	[PLAINTIFF’S NAME],

                                                   Plaintiff,

                    -against-

[DEFENDANT’S NAME],
                                                  Defendant(s). 


	Index No. [CASE NUMBER]

MEMORANDUM OF [DEFENDANTS NAME] IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DISMISS


	[DEFENDANT’S NAME]

c/o [STREET and NUMBER]
[CITY, STATE and POSTAL CODE]

Defendant, in propria persona. 


-----------------------------------------------------------------X

1.  PLAINTIFF FAILED TO COMPLY WITH FEDERAL STATUTES – NO SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION

1.
On and about [DATE YOU SENT YOUR BILLING ERROR LETTER], 2003, Defendant sent Plaintiff a billing error dispute notice pursuant to 15 USC § 1666 et seq., for account number [DEFENDANT’S CREDIT CARD ACCOUNT NUMBER].  A true and correct copy is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. [ATTACH A COPY OF YOUR BILLING ERROR LETTER AND DELETE THIS REFERENCE AFTERWARDS]

2.
As of this date Plaintiff has failed to respond to Defendant’s Billing Error Notice, and is therefore prohibited from any collection efforts.
3.
Under the Fair Credit Billing Act TA \l "Fair Credit Billing Act" \s "Fair Credit Billing Act" \c 2  (“FCBA TA \l "FCBA" \s "FCBA" \c 2 ”) a written explanation report following a reasonable investigation, or a production of documentation evidence is required to be furnished to the consumer if requested. See 15 USC § 1666(a)(3)(B)(ii) TA \l "15 USC § 1666(a)(3)(B)(ii)" \s "15 USC § 1666(a)(3)(B)(ii)" \c 2 .  Plaintiff did not provide said explanation report or documentation evidence requested by Defendant, thus failing to comply with the statute.

4.
The resolution procedures under the FCBA TA \s "FCBA"  are clear as stated in part of CFR 226.13(d) and (f) TA \l "CFR 226.13(d) and (f)" \s "CFR 226.13(d) and (f)" \c 2 : 
“...(d) Rules pending resolution. Until a billing error is resolved under paragraph (e) or (f) of this section, the following rules apply: (1) Consumer's right to withhold disputed amount; collection action prohibited. The consumer need not pay (and the creditor may not try to collect) any portion of any required payment that the consumer believes is related to the disputed amount (including related finance or other charges).”
“(f) Procedures if different billing error or no billing error occurred. If, after conducting a reasonable investigation, a creditor determines that no billing error occurred or that a different billing error occurred from that asserted, the creditor shall within the time limits in paragraph (c)(2) of this section:

(1) Mail or deliver to the consumer an explanation that sets forth the reasons for the creditor's belief that the billing error alleged by the consumer is incorrect in whole or in part;

(2) Furnish copies of documentary evidence of the consumer's indebtedness, if the consumer so requests.” [Emphasis added]

5.
“May not” is defined in Title 15 United States Code Service (lawyers edition) TA \l "Title 15 United States Code Service (lawyers edition)" \s "Title 15 United States Code Service (lawyers edition)" \c 2  § 1601, page 13, which state in part: 

“Grammatical usages.  Section 503 of Act May 29, 1968, provides: ‘In this Act [15 USCS §§ 1601 et seq.; 18 USSCS §§ 891 et seq.]: ... (3) The phrase ‘may not’ is used to indicate that an action is both unauthorized and forbidden.” [Emphasis added]

6.
If the FCBA TA \s "FCBA"  prohibits collection effort pending resolution of a billing dispute, this would obviously extend to filing a suit against Defendant.  If a creditor does not comply with the FCBA, it forfeits its right to collect the disputed amount.  See 15 USC §1666(e) TA \l "15 USC §1666(e)" \s "15 USC §1666(e)" \c 2 .  This is also confirmed by the Official Staff Commentary on Regulation Z, which states in part that “the creditor is prohibited from trying to collect the disputed amount from the consumer.  Prohibited collection action include...instituting court action...”  See Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.  Official Commentary on Regulation Z, Truth in lending, § 226.13, Pg. 88.

7.
Plaintiff may argue that the FCBA TA \s "FCBA"  only requires that the creditor forfeit $50.00 of the amount in dispute.  see 15 USC § 1666(e).  However, this argument would be without merit, as the forfeiture applies to finance charges, not the amount in dispute.  If the assertion that the $50.00 penalty applies to the disputed amount, the statute should have been written that any creditor who fails to comply with the requirements of this section or section 162 forfeits any right to collect up to $50.00 from the obligor the amount indicated by the obligor under paragraph (2) of subsection (a) of this section. [Emphasis added] 

8.
This is not the case, thus the comma separating the forfeiture of the disputed amount and finance charges related thereto indicates that the $50.00 penalty refers to finance charges.

9.
If this were not the case, a consumer who disputes a $2000.00 erroneous charge on a billing statement, would be liable for $1950.00 if the creditor does not comply with the FCBA TA \s "FCBA"  and could be sued for the same.  With that in mind, what reason would compel a creditor to comply with the requirements under the FCBA?  Obviously none.

10.
 Even if the $50.00 forfeiture penalty applies to the disputed amount, it could only apply after the creditor completed an investigation.  Plaintiff has not completed an investigation, thus precluded from collecting the amount in dispute.  If this were the case the Statute governing billing error disputes would be contradicting. 

11.
 Again, Defendant refers to CFR 226.13(d) and (f) TA \s "CFR 226.13(d) and (f)"  supra: “[u]ntil a billing error is resolved, the following rules apply: (1) Consumer's right to withhold disputed amount; collection action prohibited.  The consumer need not pay (and the creditor may not try to collect). [In part]  See paragraph 8 and 9 herein and above.  If Plaintiff never resolves the billing error dispute it simply cannot collect.  It would not make sense to have a statute that prohibits collection pending resolution, but only for ninety (90) days because no creditor would be compelled to comply. See 15 USC § 1666(a)(3)(B)(ii) 
12.
  No compliance by the Plaintiff with the requirements of the Fair Credit Billing Act (FCBA TA \s "FCBA" ) has been demonstrated.  Plaintiff may argue against Defendant’s billing error notice respecting the content of said notice.  However, any such assertion by Plaintiff would be frivolous and without merit as confirmed by 15 USC §1666(a) TA \l "15 USC §1666(a)" \s "15 USC §1666(a)" \c 2  which states in part:

“Written notice by obligor to creditor; time for and contents of notice; procedure upon receipt of notice by creditor 

If a creditor, within sixty days after having transmitted to an obligor a statement of the obligor's account in connection with an extension of consumer credit, receives at the address disclosed* under section 1637(b)(10) of this title a written notice (other than notice on a payment stub or other payment medium supplied by the creditor if the creditor so stipulates with the disclosure required under section 1637(a)(7) of this title) from the obligor in which the obligor - 

(1) sets forth or otherwise enables the creditor to identify the name and account number (if any) of the obligor, 

(2) indicates the obligor's belief that the statement contains a billing error and the amount of such billing error, and 

(3) sets forth the reasons for the obligor's belief (to the extent applicable) that the statement contains a billing error...” [Emphasis added]

13.
 Defendant’s billing error notice clearly complies with all the requirements under the section [15 USC 1666(a)]. It stated the amount in dispute, account number, and the reasons for Defendant’s belief.

14.
 If Plaintiff tries to argue that Defendant did not dispute a specific charge or monthly statement; that would also be without merit, as 12 CFR 226.13(a) TA \l "12 CFR 226.13(a)" \s "12 CFR 226.13(a)" \c 2  defines a billing error as: 

“(4)
A reflection on a periodic statement of the creditor's failure to credit properly a payment or other credit issued to the consumer's account.”

“(5)
A reflection on a periodic statement of a computational or similar error of an accounting nature that is made by the creditor.”

“(6)
A reflection on a periodic statement of an extension of credit for which the consumer requests additional clarification, including documentation evidence.” [Emphasis added]

15.
  Clearly, a billing error notice includes failure to credit a consumer’s account, a computational error made by a creditor, and the right for the consumer to request further documentation, which Plaintiff failed to do in addition to its failure to respond as required.
16.
  If Plaintiff tries to argue that Defendant did not send the billing error notice within the 60 days requirement under the FCBA, this too would also be without merit.  Defendant did notify Plaintiff after discovering the billing error as set forth in 12 CFR 226.13(a) TA \s "12 CFR 226.13(a)" , and this rule cannot apply to cases where Plaintiff fraudulently concealed information from Defendant of its failure to credit Defendant’s account, which if otherwise had been disclosed would have enabled Defendant to discover the error earlier.  

17.
  In other words, Plaintiff cannot conceal material facts that it creates credits based on Defendant’s note(s) or similar instrument(s), but refuse to credit the account without Defendant’s knowledge.  Then later try to argue, upon Defendant’s discovery of these facts that Defendant cannot use the FCBA TA \s "FCBA"  to request clarification or that these credits be adjusted because the billing error notice was not sent within 60 days of the alleged error.  

18.
  Plaintiff must comply with the FCBA TA \s "FCBA"  by providing a written explanation report as to why said credits should not be adjusted to the account or it would not comply with the requirements under the resolution procedures.  It would be impossible for Defendant to notice errors that are concealed through fraud or mistake until Defendant has discovered such activity.

19.
 Notwithstanding the 60 day notification requirement, Plaintiff would still be required to provide documentation evidence and additional clarification under 12 CFR 226.13(d) TA \l "12 CFR 226.13(d)" \s "12 CFR 226.13(d)" \c 2 , as requested in Defendant’s billing error notice, which Plaintiff simply did not do. 

20.
   If Plaintiff concealed this fraudulent transaction, it should not excuse Plaintiff from complying with the FCBA TA \s "FCBA" .  Nor should Plaintiff’s noncompliance prejudice Defendant from sending a billing error dispute notice under the FCBA § 1666.

21.  Therefore, based on the foregoing, Defendant’s billing error notice did comply with the FCBA TA \s "FCBA" , and any assertion to the contrary is without merit.

2.  PLAINTIFF’S ATTORNEY FAILED TO COMPLY WITH FEDERAL STATUTES – NO SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION
22.
  Further, the attorney for the Plaintiff is a debt collector under the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (“FDCPA”), and as such, is required to send Defendant a verification notice under 15 USC § 1692g(a). 

23.
 Defendant sent [ATTORNEY’S NAME] a notice that the alleged debt was disputed and pending resolution under FCBA § 1666.  Please see attached a true and correct copy of Defendant’s verification letter sent to attorney for the Plaintiff. Defendant requested verification of the alleged debt under 15 USC § 1692(g), and as of this date Plaintiff has failed to obtain verification of the alleged debt.

24.  Under the FDCPA § 1692g(b) the debt collector shall cease collection until the debt collector obtains verification: 

“(b) Disputed debts 

If the consumer notifies the debt collector in writing within the thirty-day period described in subsection (a) of this section that the debt, or any portion thereof, is disputed, or that the consumer requests the name and address of the original creditor, the debt collector shall cease collection of the debt, or any disputed portion thereof, until the debt collector obtains verification of the debt or a copy of a judgment, or the name and address of the original creditor, and a copy of such verification or judgment, or name and address of the original creditor, is mailed to the consumer by the debt collector.”  [Emphasis added]
25.
   The attorney failed to follow the requirements under FDCPA by failing to obtain verification of the alleged debt, wherefore Defendant submits that this case must be dismissed as a matter of law.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth herein the Plaintiff and its attorneys are, by their default and failure to follow federal law, prohibited from collecting the alleged debt, wherefore this case should be dismissed.

Dated:  __________________, 2003.
Respectfully submitted and signed by, [DEFENDANT’S NAME] without prejudice.








_____________________________













� A Consumer website confirms this: � HYPERLINK "http://www.creditcardsearchengine.com/ed_fcba.html" ��http://www.creditcardsearchengine.com/ed_fcba.html� state in part:


“In addition to the remedies available for TILA violations, a specific remedy is available to the debtor if the creditor fails to comply with the FCBA. If the creditor violates the billing error resolution procedures, the consumer nonetheless recovers from creditor the disputed amount and any finance charges thereon up to $50. 15 U.S.C. Sec. 1666(e).”  [Emphasis added]
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